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(It is hereby stipulated and agreed
by and between counsel that, sealing, filing and
certification are waived; and that all
objectionsg, except as to the form of the
question, be reserved until the time of trial.)
ROBERT RYAN CLANCY, M.D., after having been
first duly sworn, wag examined and testified as
follows:
BY MR. BECKER:
Q. Good morning, Doctor, would you state your

full name for me, please?

A. My name is Dr. Robert Clancy.
Q. And what i1s your business address?
A. The Division of Neurology the Children's

Hospital of Philadelphia, 34th Street and Civic Center
Boulevard, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19104.

Q. Dr. Clancy, did you bring with you your
complete file that you have on this case?

A Yes, I did.

Q. If vou would, sir, would you, just kind
of, go through vour file and tell me what medical
records, in general, vyou have, depositions, et cetera?

A. I'm going to move to get to the stack.

Q. That 's fine.
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MR. BULLOCH: It's fairly voluminous, Mike

BY MR. BECEKER:

Q. And, Doctor, while you're ldoking at that
I gather from some old depositions of yours that, at
least at one point, vou had a tendency to make notes on
the front of the depcsitions of the respective experts.
Did vou do that in this casge?

a. Yes. In all of them.

MR, BECKER: {kay. And, John, can we get an
agreement that we can have the front page of each
depecsition marked after -- photocopied and then
marked as an exhibit after the depo?

MR. BULLOCH: Sure.

THE WITNESS: So I'1l just read through
this. I have my billing for the case. The first
letter from Moscarino and Treu that lists the
material. A copy of my report that you have, my
Curriculum Vitae, and these are cover letters for
Dr. Wilhem's deposition, Dr. Robert Darnall, old
billings from couple years ago, additional
records from Dr. Cahigh, EMS report, University
of North Carclina and just correspondence about
the trial coming up, cover letter about
Dr. Adler's deposgition, cover letter about
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Page 7 E
Dr. Barry Pressman's report. The announcement of i

this deposition. I have one E-mail from, well,
from my secretary to call Mr. Ostra, an E-mail
from Mr. Ostra. The report from Dr. Raymond
Redline. I have notes from the medical records
which are attached

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Those are vyour notes?

AL Yes, sir.

Q. Okay .

A. Just from the chronology and things like

that. Ancther E-mail from my secretary to call

Mr. Bulloch. The cover letter for Dr. Jonathan Cronin's
deposgition, Dr. Cronin's report, a report from

Dr. Hermansen, Dr. Adler and Dr. Redline, another
E-mail, the medical chart of Dr. Cahigh, the cover
letter for Dr. Hermansen's deposition, the home movies;
I have a medical article regarding mitochondrial
discrders, recelpts from old bills. I have notes that I
toock when I re-reviewed the -- there was two volumes of
home movies, the VHS tape said 2004, I think version I
or number one, something like that. The second tape was
home movies 2004 number two. Report from Dr. Pressman,

notes from a volume I got recently that included the

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEC
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1 time when Matthew was, I think, ten moniths and had rege
2 suspected meningococcal infection.

3 Here is the depositions that I have the

4 notes on. So I have Dr. Adier and there are notes on

5 the front of that. Dr. Cronin, there's notes on the

6 front cf that, Dr. Bachman's deposition, there's notes
7 onn the front of that. Dr. Joshua Alexander, there is a
8 few notes with that. Dr. Nelson, his recent deposition,
9 there's notes on that. I have the deposition, I guess

10 the first deposition of Dr. Wilhem, I don't have notes

11 on that. I have -- I have a stick-um on page 41, just

12 to look at that, and a stick-um on page 65. Here's the
13 deposition of Dr. Hermansen, there's notes on that;

14 Dr. Darnall. I have the mother's deposition. I have

15 not read it. T have no notes on 1t. I have the
i6 deposition of Dx. Lilien with notes on it. These are
17 medical records, Dr. Cahigh's, thig veoiume is sort of

18 all the material that related to his admission to
12 University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, between

20 July 25, 20600 and August 2, 2000.

21 Now, the rest of the medical records go this
22 is the Developmental Evaluation Center and these are
23 from the Dosher Memorial Hospital, so these are

24 duplicates I believe. Thig is, this is the volume for

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO
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1 the meningitis, July 2000. Thig was the notes from the ege
2 Fairview Hospital when he was a newborn.

3 MR. BULLOCH: The records you mean?

4 THE WITNESS: The records. And this file ig
5 the Preliminary Service Coocrdination Summary

6 Recommendation. This is a lot of his pediatric

7 and follow-up stuff. Dr. Cahigh's records. This
8 is the Wellcare Home Health records. These are

9 his newborn records I guess that's Parma
10 Hospital. 2and then I have a batch of outpatient
11 records from North Carolina. So this is David

12 Bachman's report, Dr. Rhoades, a GI, Joshua
13 Llexandeyr, Dave Wallis, Richard Southerlin, Tracy
14 Irwin, therapy notes, neonatal develcpmental

15 clinic follow-up, social service letters and lab
16 work.

17 MR. BULLOCH: Again, Doctor, two times you
18 said, "notes," by that you mean records?

19 THE WITNESS: No. These are all medical
20 records. My handwritten notes are over here;

21 ckay?

22 BY MR. BECKER:

23 Q. How many pages are your handwritten notes?
24 A. Well, the notes from the medical records I
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think are about six pages or so and they're stapled
together and then I have, just, additional notes from,
again, like, looking at the movies or the home movies
and some other things.

MR. BULLOCH: Doctor, not to belabor the
point but I know Mr. Becker is going to ask for
copiesg of these so vou need to refer to each one
and tell him how many pages, exactly, they are.

THE WITNESS: These are my original
handwritten notes from reviewing the medical
records and they are six pages long. 1 have,
again, my list for the billing time.

MR. BULLOCH: And that's how many pages?

THE WITNESS: This is one page for the
billing notes. I have three pages of notes from
the review, there was actually four video tapes.
there was the twc home movies and then there was
one, the professional tape, the Day in the Life
of Matthew, and then there wag a third tape but
it was really Jjust an edited piece of the home
movies that were put together.

So anvhow these are my notes on that,
that's three pages. One page of noteg just

reviewing the medical records from the episode of

R
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Page 11
meningococcal infection in July of -- or whenever

that was, July 2000.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. I should ask you, Doctor, how is your
handwriting?
A, Not bad.

MR. BECKER: John, can we get an agreement,
so we don't make this deposition four hours long,
that 1if T can't read anvthing we can get a
subsequent interpretation?

MR. BULLOCH: Yeah, I mean, Mike, I'm
sitting here and I can read it; I'm sure you
won't have any trouble reading it, but, sure.

I'm sure the doctor will be happy to interpret
his notes for vou if vou need him to.

MR. BECKER: Okay.

(Whereupon, Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3,
Exhibit 44, Exhibit 4B, Exhibit 4C, Exhibit 5A,
Exhibit 5B, Exhibit 5C, Exhibit 5D, Exhibit 5E,
and Exhibit 5% were marked for identification.)

MR. BULLOCH: Okay, Mike, for the record, we
have Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2, Exhibit 3, Exhibit 4A

through 4C and Exhibit 5A through 5F.

BY MR. BECKER:

TR T
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Q. and, Doctor, I do not need you to go
through each page of the exhibit, but as to Bxhibit 1,
tell me what that is just for the recoxrd, for two, et
etcetera?

A Sure. So Exhibit 1 are my notes regarding
hospitalization for the meningococcal infection. Number
2 ig my billing notes for the case. Three is a, what I
call consideration, sort of like summary of the time
line, the facts. Four is the notes on the home movies
and the profesgional Day in the Life, and then the
composite film, and then Exhibit 5 are the six pages of
notes that I took when I originally reviewed the case
couple vears ago from the medical records.

MR. BULLOCH: And just for the record these
were marked in no specific order of priority.

They were just done between myself and the court

reporter.

MR. BECKER: That's fine.
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Doctor, I know you've been deposed before
but just to be fair with you I want to review the ground
rules.

This is a guestion and answer session under
oath. It's important yvou understand the guestion that T
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pose. If, for any reason, the guestion doesn’'t make

sense Lo

stop me and tell me so and I would be most pleased to

attempt to rephrase or restate the guestion. Failr

enough?
A,

Q.

me I'm going to assume that vou fully understood the

guestion
best and
A
Q.
not look

original

e

=R S S

Page 13 ;

vou or 1s inartfully phrased, I want you to

Yes.

However, unless you indicate otherwise to

that has been posed and you are giving me your
complete answer today. Fair enough?

Yes.

Is 1t safe for me to assume that you did
at the EEG strips themselves in this case, the
strips?

That's correct. I only read the reports.

Did you asgsk for the EEG strips for vour

No, I didn't.

Did vou look at the head films?

Yes, I 4id.

When did vou look at the head films?
Yesterday.

For the first time?

Yes.
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Page 14
Q. Did you ask for the head films prior to
yvesterday?
A. Actually I did and -- but only recently

and since I was meeting with Mr. Bulloch yvesterday he

agreed just to bring them for me to look at them then.
Q. T noticed in some of your depocsitions,

Doctor, that yvou have a practice of reviewing head £ilms

with Bob Zimmerman in vyour department or at CHOP;

correct?

AL Yes.

Q. Did you by chance review these films with
him?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Have vyou discussed these films with Bob
Zimmerman?

A, No.

O. Have vou discussed your oplinionsg with

anyone on this case other than counsel for Fairview

General Hospital?

A No, I have not.
Q. why did you ask for the films?
A. Just to see what they looked like, really,

because there were so many different interpretations of

them.
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Page 15
0. Is your interpretation of these films

noted in any of the notes we've marked as exhibits?

A, No.

Q. What 1is your opinion of what the films
reflect?

A, Well, first of all, I've looked at one

film and that was the brain MRI that was obtained in
the -- right after birth. So that was the film taken
September 8, 1999, because I thought that was the most
relevant study with respect to, you know, the neonatal
course.

0. Fair enough. What was vour interpretation
if vou have one?

A. Well, I certainly can see the lesions on
the study. I'm not in a position to say 1if they're
early necnatal fibers or coagulation necrosis with PVL
but I can see what other people are pointing to. I also
see that the basal gangla areas appear normal on those
studies, which is obviously a relevant consideration for
this child because of the type of CP that he has.

Q. We'll talk about that. Let me ask you
straight up, Doctor, since it's not noted in vyour
report, do you hold an opinion, within a reasonable

degree of medical probability, as to the cause and
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Page 16 E
mechanism leading to Matthew's brain injury?

MR. BULLOCH: OCbjection

THE WITNESS: I cdo.
BY MR. BECKER:

0. Okay. Is that opinion reflected in your

report; mavbe I missed it?
| A Well, T do discuss the lactic acidosis and
concerns for a metabolic condition. Really, just after
the deposition of Dr. Wilhem, who talks about the
current condition of Matthew, that he is only taking a
couple steps, and then, again, loocking back at the home
movies, it's really pretty clear that he's
deteriorating. He's not running a stable course or, you
know, gradual improvement as you expect with CP. And so
putting together, again, the type of CP and the lactic
acidosis, from my perspective, new knowledge, thig is
not a static lesion but a progressive lesion, then, that

leads me to think that he has a metabolic condition such

as mitcchondrial disorder.

Q. All right. So that was kind. of a long
answer and I think vou were giving me your explanation
as to why that opinicn is not contained in your report.

Specifically, that yvou discern that this child, taking

what the life planner says, that you're presuming that
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Page 17
the child has a progressive motor disease and that would

cause you, because you're interpreting her comments as a
progressive motor disease, you're presuming, then, that
it, 1likely, is some type of a disorder, mitochondrial
disorder, that vyou just outlined?
MR. BULLOCH: Objection. Mike, I don't
believe he said this was a new opinion. I need

to object to that and I need to object because I

think there is, like, six parts to that guestion.
BY MR. BECKER:

0. Well, Doctor, is your opinion abocut the
mitochendrial disorder reflected anywhere on your
report?

A. No. The word "mitochondrial disorder"
does not show up but the concerns about the consistently
elevated lactic acid, the mixed CP type, the fact that
he has a hearing loss and so forth, because at the time
I wrote this report in Octcher 2004 it was my
understanding then, again, that he had a gtatic lesion,
but I think the evidence now, is that it's not static,
it's been progressive and that's why I'm refining this
opinicn today.

Q. Well, what evidence is it that it is

progressive and not static, other than what Cynthia
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Wilhem says?

A. Well, first of all, I did, after I read
Wilhem's deposition, I looked back through the medical
records, and let me just stand up and find the one
because I think it's important.

So this is one cf the medical records, it
looks like it was sent to me February 9, 2006 and it's
from the Developmental Center mostly. There ié some
insurance information, communication notes, skillied
notes, but then we go to the physical -- physical
therapist and I'm looking at a report, this 1s from
Wellcare Home Health, Pediatric Physical Therapy
Evaluation. And it says, July 20, 2004 but it's
scratched out. Anyhow it's the PT report from Matthew

Wagoner, and he's four vears ten months, and under

careglver's concern 1t says, "Patient has regressed in
motor skills”. And then further along that line, and
this is from -- the name of the therapist is Cathy

Poulog, P-0-U-L-0-8, physical therapist, "he can ascend
and descend stairs independently and demonstrated
independency in going up and down one step in-home that
divides two rooms. He cannot jump or hop. He attempts
to run but it is a fast walk pattern.®

So that, that description by his therapist,

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO

Page 18 ;




Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

i9

20

21

22

23

24

you khow, combined with the fact that the mother is
saying he is regressing and actually in the Day in the
Life movie it shows him reguiring assistance. I
remember there are little plates or something on the
floor. He had to be held up to step over those and then
Dr. Wilhem saving that she had seen him and then did a
telephone interview of the mother more recently, I don't
remember the date, sayving that he couldn't take more
than two or three steps. You know, when you lock at the
movie and then look at that they're describing two very
different children.

Q. Well, 1s -- are vyou assuming that the mom
ig referring to motor regression or simply not advancing

in academics?

A. Well, this 1s the guote, it savs,
"caregiver concerns, 'patient has regressed in motor
skills. "

Q. You're reading me a physical therapist
note?

a. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. My guestion, sir, was relative to

the mom. What did she report, if any, relative to motor
skills or was she specific?

A. Right. Just so; maybe I'm not making

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEC
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Page 20 |
myself clear. The mother is the caregiver. The

caregiver is the child, the mother, and so it's the
mother sayving that the patient has regressed in the
motor skilis.

O. Well, has any doctor aocumenteﬁ, any
physician documented that this child has regressed in
motor skillis?

A, Not that I know of. Again, the only way
it was apparent to me was by really looking at the home
videos because they’'re very telliing. I mean, I know
yvou've seen them and, vou know, he's ocutside with the
swings. He's got a very lurchy, vou know, he looks very
off balance but he's pretty much all over the vyard.
There's a scene when they're out by the, the red pickup
truck and a basketball thing and he's in and out of that
and to go from that which you can c¢learly see that he's
abnormal. There is no doubt about that. You can
clearly see he is abnormal, but he is walking without
any assistive devices, you know, on rough terrain, he‘s.
outside. To go from that to, like, he falls after two
or three steps, that‘s a big difference.

Q. This is difficult for me, Doctor, but I'm

going to ask yvou to assume, for the purpose of most of

my questions here, that this child, since I have seen a
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1 very recent video of him, there's no difference from my rege
2 perspective and there's been no major difference in the
3 way this child moves arcund. If you saw a video today
4 that shows this child just as active as he was in the
5 Day in the Life would you retract that opinion?
6 ' MR. BULLOCH: Well, Mike, I'm going to have
7 to object because number one, we have repeatedly
8 asked for additional medical records. The last
9 medical records we know we recelved from vyvour
10 office is 2004. You're under duty to
11 supplement your discovery responses, and those
12 films were obtained through discovery. We have
13 not seen this film. So to the extent that you've
14 got a late produced film, I'm going tc object to
15 its production at trial. Go head, Doctor, if vyou
16 can remember what his gquestion was.
17 THE WITNESS: Well, I do remember the
18 question. So the diagnosis of a mitochondrial
19 disorder is on fermise ground or at least it's
20 the more classic presentation when there's
21 deterioration. And again as a neurologist we
22 always, sort of, have our radar out for these
23 things. So the one article I brought is a
24 degcription of, you know, all right, we have
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Page 22
experience with kids with mitochondrial disease

and basically it says, ves, you know, the classic
picture there is things like extrapyramidal CP,
deafness, regression, lactic acidosis but in the
families they show, there are children that
behave like, sort of, conventional CP that
they're static. So that they look like they have
a lesion. It doesn't particularly evolve over
time.
So even if his condition is static,
it's still consistent with the mitochondrial
disorder and, again, the lactic acidosis numbers
are very -- I think they're very, important,
coupled, again, with the deafness, vou know, the
neuro behavioral issues the child has, because
when vou put that all together that's mostly
consistent with the mitochondrial disease and
that really needs to be pursued in Matthew.
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Well, have any of his doctors in North
Carolina made that diagnosig?

A, The closest was Dr. Bachman who wrote

something like, I forget the exact words, persgistent

lactic acidosis. I think he has a little note, I need
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Page 23
to pursue thig, and I don't really know what happened to '

that at that point. I don't know if it's been pursued
and I don't know, actually know, if he's been back to
gee Dr. Bachman for that matter.

MR. BECKER: Doctér, why don't we mark as
Exhibit 6 this article that you brought with
yvou. You only brought one article, mitochondrial
disorder?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. So just for the
record, the title is Multiple Presentation of
Mitochondrial Disorders. It's from the Archives
of Diseases in Childhood 19929, Volume 81, pages
209 to 215 and the first doctor's name is
Nigsenkorn, N-I-$-5-E-N-K-0O-R-N.

{(Whereupon, Exhibit 6 was marked for

identification by the court reporter.)
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Doctor, is that the only medical journal
article that you brought with you today?

AL Yes.

0. Now, are you able to rule out that
Matthew's RDS and its complications including
pneumothrosis is the etiology for his brain injury?

A. That's correct. I did not congsider his

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO




Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Page 24 |
respiratory distress and pneumothrosis to be the cause :

of any of his current problems.

0. You are able to rule that out?
Al Yes.
Q. And the basis that vou're ruling it out is

what, Doctor?

A. Well, first of all, if this is a quote
"asphyxia type injury" and by asphyxia I'll take it to
mean either hypoxic, ischemia, loss of profusion or
combination of those. And taking this child's
gestational age to be 35 weeks. We have a lot of
experience on how children should behave acutely if
they 've been exposed to an asphyxial event that's
powerful enough to actually cause damage, right then and
there, severe enocugh to lead to a permanent disability.

Now, I recognize that if it's a very, very
small preemie they may not show acute neurological
signs. They may not show multisystem malfunction and so
forth because it's a different biology at that point.
But certainly by 34 weeks that if the child has cardiac
arrest or pneumothorax or birth asphyxia or any other
mechanism that's going to be gquote "asphyxiating" and
vet severe enough to cause permanent damage, then we

really need to see acute neurological signs right then
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and there. Not days later or weeks later, but right

when the pneumothorax happened or the hypoxia was
documented.

Q. Are you aware that any experts on behalf
of the Plaintiffs have asserted that this child was
asphyxiated?

A. Well, again, I'm not saying birth
asphyxia. I don't mean at the moment of birth but you
know if a baby --

Q. Excuse me, Doctor.

MR. BULLOCH: Mike, let him finish his
answer.

MR. BECKER: John -- and I will let him
finish but I think we ought to go back and work
with some definitions because I want to make sure
we're on the same page.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. So let's start with some definitions
Doctor, and maybe I'm using the wrong words in my
guestions. What does asphyxia mean to you?

A. Right. Asphyxia refers to an
embarrassment or interruption cof either oxygenation,
tissue oxygenation, profusion, or both, and, again, I

didn't mean to get vou -- I know when we hear the word
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asphyxia we always think of in the delivery room. T

don't mean that at all. But realize that if someone
falls into a swimming pool and they're drowning, that's
a type of asphyxia; if a baby gets wrapped up in a bag
and can't breathe, that's a form of asphyxia. Sc what
I'm saving when I use the word asphyxia here has nothing
to do with labor and delivery in the OR or things like
that. But, you know, the issue that's on the table is
that he had a pneumothorax and what did that do to his
ability to deliver oxygen and blood to his brain. So
I'm using asphyxia to describe, like, the oxygenation,
profusion agpects. And maybe I should stay away from
the word because most people immediately hear birth put
the word birth in front of asphyxia. So I'll stay away
from that word.

. What does hypoxia mean?

A. Well, if it's in reference to the blood
stream it means a low oxygen reading in the blood,
hypoxemia. 2And on the other hand, if you're referring
to the oxygenation of the tissue, that's tissue hypoxia,
a lack of oxygen in the tissue or lower than normal
oxygen in the tissue.

Q. And what does ischemia mean?

A. Ischemia 1s a loss of profusion or the
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actual flow of blood through the tissues of any part of

the body.
Q. What does HIE mean?
A. HIE is actually a clinical syndrome of --

the operating word there is encephalopathy. So there ig
something pathological with the brain, encephalopathy,
and the clinical gigng of the encephalopathy are due to
some combination of hypoxia and ischemia.

0. And what is an EEG?

A. The EEG is the electroencephalogram or a
brain wave test.

O, And what is a seizure?

A. A clinical geilzure is a sudden abnormal
parasedral attack that 1s brought on by a temporary
electrical disturbance in the cortex of the brain.

0. And what is something called subclinical
or occult seizure?

A. An occult seizure refers to the phenomenon
of a child having a seizure on the EEG but for whatever
reason doesn't provoke a visible clinical seizure in the
child or the adult for that matter.

Q. And is that the same thing as subclinical,

occult, cne in the same, or is there something

different?
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A. No. I consider them to be the same.

Q. Is it true that 80 percent of seizures are
subclinical or occult?

A, That sounds about right to me. That's
about what my experience is.

0. And it true for -- to gain an EEG
confirmation of a seizure i1t should be done very close
to the acute event causing the brain injury?

A. Well, 1f vou're looking for selzures it
should be as close to the time that you're actually, as
vou say, suspecting the clinical seizures. So remember
that the concept is that the child did something
clinical to make the doctors worry. I think the baby
might be having a seilzure. So then they call the EEG
people in and they do the EEG and they realize that,
sure enough, not only is the child having seizures, but
we're only detecting, vou know, 20 percent of the
actual, 20 percent of the actual seizures. So that
doesn't mean that if vou walk up to a healthy baby and
put an EEG on that they are, like, closet seizure kids
or they're secretly having seizures. These kids that
the EEG was done for a purpose because they have signsg
of HIE or it could be, vou know, something other than
that. It could be meningitis or hemorrhage but
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something triggered the concern for seizures in the -

first place. Then you realize, again, you are only
seeing a small fraction of them.

Q. The point of thé guestion, Doctor, was,
that if you -- your best chance of getting the EEG
confirmation of a seizure is to have it done in a time
that's very close to when the acute event causes the
seizure, correct?

A. I do agree with that.

Q. Let's talk about the concept of
autoregulation. What does that mean, Doctor?

A. Autoregulation refers to the ability of
the nervous system to adjust its own cerebral blood flow
to maintain it relatively constant, even though the

blood pressure can fluctuate from low values to high

values.

Q. What are some things that can compromise
autoregulation?

A, Well, marked prematurity can certainly do
it. Sepsis, I suppose there are scome drugs that can do

it. Children who do have HIV are, don't have the
wherewithal o regulate their own blood supply. So
there is a list of serious causes.

0. How about hypoxemia from RDS, can that
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compromise autoregulation?

A. Well, it depends on what degree of
hypoxemia. I don't know that a modest amount of
hypoxemia does. It's difficult to actually measure
these things in humans. For example, when they have
been done they've been done with things like Zion,
radiocactive Zion, blood flow. So those types of studies
are not being done anymore.

0. How about newborns that are on mechanical
ventilation, are they at risk of losing autoregulation?

A, As far as I know if it's just a matter of,
if their brains are normal and they're simply on
mechanical Ventilatioﬁ I'm not, personally, aware that
that stops autoregulation.

Q. What does the phrase passive pressure
cerebral circulation mean to vou?

A. The passive pressure refers to the
behavior of a child that has lost the autoregulation.
So in this place cerebral blood flow will mirror the
profusion so 1f the blood pressure goes up, then,
passively, the circulation of the brain goes up and you
run the risk of actually creating a hemorrhage because
there 1is too much blcod flowing through the brain. On

the other hand, if the blood pressure falls or the
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profusion pressure falls then there is less blood being

delivered to the brain and you run the risk of an
igchemic injury.

Q. Now, I don't want to confuse things,
Doctor, but vou recognize that one can have a brain
injury from either hypoxia or ischemia without a true
classic asphyxia, correct?

A, If you're talking about a real small
preemie that's true. But, again, when I originally --
you asked me about asphyxia, I said it's a combination
of either hypoxia or ischemlia or something together. So
I don't know how I can answer the question, you know, if
yvou're hypoxic or ischemic to me that's asphyxia. Not
birth asphyxia but, vou know, from a cardiac arrest oxr
smothering or anything else.

0. Well, just, hypothetically, I guess,
because your use of, what I would respectfully say or
liberal use of the word asphyxia if you have a newborn
that is on mechanical ventilation and has a sudden bout
of bradycardia for 15 or 20 minutes but is not --
doesn't go on to multisystem organ injury or, vyvou know,
major lactic acidosis, with a base deficit, that kind of
thing, yvou recognize that that condition can cause brain

injury?
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1 AL No. See I would not accept that. In
2 other words I don't see, you know, I don't think it
3 matters 1f the child is five days old or one day old, or
4 is even, in fact, freshly delivered from the labor and
5 delivery room, but if that bradvcardia was, you know,
6 severe enocugh and prolonged enough to damage the brain
7 then I do expect the majority of cases, not a hundred
8 percent, but the majority of cases will have the
S multisystem but if the brain is acutely injured there
10 has to be signs of injury.
11 By what magic do you permanently damage
12 somebody and vet they are alert and active and have good
i3 | tone and all those things? That's not an acceptable
14 proposition in my mind.
15 Q. Would vou expect to see an abnormal MRI
16 at, roughly, eight days old if there was a mitochondrial
17 cause?
18 A. Well, first of all, there can be and thig
19 igs described a little bit in this paper. Some of the
20 kids have white matter abnormalities. And I‘m not
21 saying that those lesions on the MRI scan are from
22 that., Because, vyou know, ag vou know that, you know,
23 the whole, the whole pneumothorax and chest tubes and

24 the low oxygen reads were on August 25th and the child
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looked okay clinically during that time, but, then,

later there were other concerng, and I think very
legitimate concerns, for infection when the child
behaved later, I don't remember exactly, seven or eight
or nine days, was less active and described as hypotonic
and so forth and then they were worried about the
infection. That's when they did the spinal tap and the
culture of the tubes and the white blood cell counts
that they didn't like. BRecause even though I realize
they did not confirm any particular virus or bacteria or
whatever, clinically they were very worried about
sepsis. So that MRI finding, you know, from '98, '99%
that could have been related to that. It could have
been related to other things, I'm not really sure, but,
again, the main reason I wanted to see the scan was to
really look at the basal ganglia because that's a big
part of his disability, this chondroid cytogig. I see
nothing wrong with the basal ganglia and I don't think
anyone described any basal ganglia lesgion in the later
scans. I have not locked at them myself but I wanted to
at least look at the one that was done right after
birth.

0. Do yvou understand, Doctor, that the basal

ganglia, the thalami that can be compromised secondarily
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as a result of a primary white matter injury. Did you '

learn that in your training?

A, No. I must have been sick that day.

Q. 211 right. Did you learn in your
training, Doctor, that for one to pick up, that vou can
have a thalami injury without radiographic support. In
other words, there can be a microstructural injury to
the thalami without MRI support? Did you learn that?

A, Well, you know, you could certainly --so
let's pretend that a person has an MRI scan and they say
we looked at the basal ganglia and they looked fine.
And then the guy or the girl, whatever, dieg and they
do, vou know, thelr post-morbid examination and they 1l
say, you know, we found microscopic findings in there.
I'm sure that's happened, but the point is that if vyou
have a clinically relevant finding, and, agaln, Matthew
Wagoner's chondroid cytosis is, by no means, subtle,
it's florid, then how does a microscopic thing affect,
yvou know, that's not even visible under your best
scanners and you have multiple scans and multiple
people, yvou know, the community radiologist, vyour
radiologist, his radiclogist, no one is seeing anything

there. I don't think, I don't think that's acceptable.

On the other hand, we do know that kids that have
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dysfunction, like kids with mitochondrial disorders,
that's one of their characteristic types of, you know,
disability. And they very often don't have, you know,
they have functional disturbances of the basal ganglia
but they don't have like, vyou know, scars and holes
necessarily. Some of them actually, over time, will
develop that. But they can be dysfunctional without
being abnormal structuralily.

Q. When one thinks of extrapyramidal is that
pronounced correctliy?

A, Extrapyramidal.

Q. Okay. You think of ball bar signs, vyou
lock for ball bar sigﬁs?

A, Children who have extrapyramidal CP, for

whatever reason, often have ball bar signs, dysarthria,

drocling, trouble swallowing, sometimes, I don't know if

vou consider reflex to be, sort of, a neurclogical sign

of that context, but they seem to go hand and hand

together.
Q. Which of those, 1f any, does Matthew have?
A, Well, he has -- you mean ball bar signs?
Q. Yes.
i He has dysarthria, I really don't know

about the drooling. I couldn't tell. I don'‘t remember
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reading about it. But the dysarthria is probably the
most prominent one.

Q. What does that mean?

A. That he has difficulty with generating
distinct speech. It's not what he says but the way he
says it. The way he articulates hisg words.

Q. You're not suggesting that one can't have
a mixed CP from hypoxic, are you?

A, No. As a matter of fact, that's a known
combination in the setting of eventg such as terminal
bradycardia. So let's say a woman is in labor and the
heart rate suddenly goes down to 60 or below for an
extended period of time, then they will have a pattern
of brain injury that includes both the cortex, the
related white matter, the deep gray structures and they
are clearly encephalopathic. They will have seizures.
They don't feed. They are hypotonic and when all is
said and done they will have -- they may have a mixed CP
picture with elements of spasticity and extrapyramidal
features and dysarthria and that's certainly known but,
again, it's majorly qatastrophic, yvou know, acute
profound asphyxia pictures.

0. Well, vyou can get a mixed CP from, Jjust

speaking generally now, you can have a partial prolonged
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hypoxia and then superimposed on that would be a sudden

complete anoxia situation, correct?

A. Right, but again just toc answer your
original question. If a child only had the acute
profound because the fact, again, we always focus on the
deep gray structures and the corpus callosum and so
forth but remember, they also have lesions in the
perietal cortex, the white matter between the basal
ganglia and the perietal cortex. So that's even without
prolonged partial those kids can have a mixture because
they have a combination of pyramidal traction,
extrapyramidal but vyes, if there is a partial prolonged
asphyxia and then it's complicated by a terminal
bradycardia that would be another way of getting a mixad
CP pattern.

0. You would agree, Doctor, that
radiographically the way HIE injuries appear are typical
global, bilateral and symmetrical?

A, I'm sorry, I wasn't listening. Could vou
repeat.

Q. HIE, for an HIE radiograph picture they
typical appear as global, bilateral, symmetrical?

A. I think in general that's true.

0. Can you tell me what the potential
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deleterious or negative effects of pneumothorsis or :

bilateral pneumothorsis would be on a child with
moderate RDS?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.

THEE WITNESS: Well, they embarrass the
circulation. They introduce an element of
respiratory compromise so that the lungs can't
aerate as well. You can't blow off the C02 as
well. You can't oxygenate as well and if they
are large and unattended they can affect the
return of blood into the heart.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. And if it affects the return of blood into
the heart how.will that impact the child's profusion to
the brain?

A. Well, it has to do that through general
blood pressure mechanisms. I mean, when the blood
leaves the heart it's not, you know, it's just going up
the aorta. Some is going to go to the arms and the body
and the heart itself and some is going to the brain. So
the Segregate measure for that isg still in the blood
pressure and, for example, the color of the baby's
face. So if there is a lack of oxygen going to the

head, including to the face, the, vou know, the baby
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will desaturate and that's really what the cyanosis is,
is when you have too much of deoxygenated hemoglobin.
So, theoretically, it can be very serious, but it has to
do its harm through measurable effects on blood
pressure, oxygenation and so forth.

Q. So if it was severe it could cause the
heart -- impact the function of the heart and drop in
blood pressure?

A, Yegs.

Q. And if there is a drop in blood pressure
and if, in fact, there already may be a leoss of
autoregulation, what is the impact of that on the
cerebral profusion to the brain?

A. The cerebral profusion will reduce. TIEf,
again this is hypothetical, if the child has lost
autoregulation, for whatever reason, and there is a
significant loss in blood pressure that is driving the
blood to the head then, because it's a pressure passive
system there will be less profusion of the brain.

Q. And that can cause an ischemic permanent

brain injury?

A. Right. The pattern would be, the pattern
would be an ischemia pattern. I mean the radiclogists
have to decide exactly -- what exactly an ischemic
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pattern is. But that would be the principal mcover of

the damage, would be the ischemia. So that's the
pattern you would lock for.

Q. Doctor, I'm going read some things to you
from Volpe. I want to know if you‘agree or disagree

with them. Okay. I'm assuming you have Volpe in your

library?
A Yes, I do.
Q. And is Volpe a neurology in newborns --

the leading textbook in the subspecialty field of

newborn neurclogy?

A. I think it probably is, ves.
Q. The perinatal brain can be deprived of
oxygen by two major pathogenic mechanisms: Hypoxemia,

which is diminished amount of oxygen in the blood supply

and i1schemia, which is diminished amount of blood

profusion to the brain. Do vyou agree?
AL Yesg.
0. Ischemia is the more important of these

two forms of oxygen deprivation. Do you agree?

AL T mean, they're both important. I don't
think either one of them are trivial.

Q. Marked hypoxemia 1s required to produce
serious changes in brain energy state in the neonatal

b N T R T A I e

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO




Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Page 41
adult (ph). Do you agree?
AL Yes.
0. The principal biochemical mechanism of

ceii death with hypoxemia, ischemia and asphyxia are,
presumably, very similar, if not identical, and are
initiated by oxygen deprivation. Do you agree?

Al If yvou're reading it accurately I will
agree with that.
MR. BULLOCH: Mike, I'm going to object to
vou reading this out of a textbook without
putting a copy in front of the doctor so that he
can see the entire reference. I don't know if
vou're picking and choosing. If vou're reading
one paragraph out of five paragraphs.
BY MR, BECKER:

c. Doctor, I'm reading from Chapter 6 on
Volpe entitled, Hypoxic-Ischemic, Encephalopathy
Biochemical and Physiological Aspects. Alterations and
cerebral blood flow are of prime importance for
understanding a neuropathological and neurologic
consegquences of all varieties of parinatal asphyxia and
hypoxic-ischemic insulte. Do vou agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes, I do
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BY MR. BRECKER:

Q. And, by the way, was Matthew a preterm
child?

A. Yes. I think, vou know, I don't know
there is any consensus on this but I considered him to
be, basically, 35, mavybe 36 weeks, so that's preterm.
Term 1s 37 or higher.

Q. Now, did vou notice that there is a

Dubowitz assegsment of him at 34 weeks?

A. I did notice that.

Q. What weight do you give to a Dubowitz
assessment?

A. You know, I don't do them anymore so T
can't -- I think he was a near-term baby and as I

mentioned, even for 34-week baby, that's still mature
enough that if yvou have brain damaging asphyxia vyou're
required to see acute encephalopathy signs.

Q. The margin of safety, at least in the
preterm fetus, and at least to a lesser extent in the
term fetus, 1s small at the lower end of the
autoregulation curve and points to the vulnerability to
ischemic brain injury with modest hypotension,
particularly in the preterm animal. Do vou agree.

MR. BULLOCH: OQObkjection
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THE WITNESS: Right, but remember what vyou

said there, that you're at the bottom of the

profusion curve. If you're at the bottom of the

profusion curve that means, like, you're
teetering on the edge there and then further
reductions can be serious. So that's kind of
hard to disagree with that.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. The impailrment of autoregulation requires
only a 20-minute exposure to hypoxia and autoregulation
will not recover until seven hours after restoration of
neuromoxiar?

MR. BULLOCH: Objecti_on.

THE WITNESS: I don't know if is he talking
about laboratory animals or human beings there.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. I think he's talking about neonatal
animals which includes laboratory animals.

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Well, vou know, it may be
true, vou know, in laboratory animals that they
measured them and, again, I don't know how severe
the hypoxia -- or anything like that, but I

think, probably, data that's not precise ig not
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degcribing humans. 8

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Do vou agree, Doctor, that merely because
hypoxia or hypoxemia i1s addressed that it is likely that
the impairment of autoregulation takes some time in the
human to recover, if you know?

A. I don't know. Again, it's very hard to
actually measure these things and that's the value of
the animal models, to at least give you some concept
that these symptoms don't turn on and off automatically,
but I really wouldn't have no idea in the human what the
true time course 1s for losing it or regaining it.

Q. Volpe comments that a pressure passive
state of cerebral circulation was observed both in
seriously asphyxiated full-term infants and mechanically
ventilated preterm infants; do you agree or disagree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection
THE WITNESS: Right, and, again, though T
think yvou need to be very careful when he savs,

"preterm, " because I'm familiar with his -- he's

looking at this thing that, I forget the term he

used, like the jitter and the cerebral profusion
pressure. Those were really, at least I recall

them to be quite young babies, not 35-weekers
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but, T don't know, 30-week or something like

that.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. The neuropathol -- I'm up to Chapter 8 in
Volpe. The neuropathological features of neonatal and
hypoxic-ischemic encephalopathy vary considerably with
gestational age of the infant, the nature of the insult,
the type of interventions. Do you agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Of particular importance in the genesis of
impaired cerebral blood flow and, thereby, cerebral
igchemia, is an impairment of cerebral vascular
regulation in the subset of premature infants who are
mechanically ventilated, often clinically unstable and a
a clear exhibit of pressure passive cerebral
circulation. Do you agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.

THE WITNESS: I do but, again, it's
important to know exactly the population of when
he says pre-term how premature.

BY MR. BECKER:
Q. He goes on to state, the potential reasons
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for pressure passive cerebral circulation include
hypercardia or hypoxemia related to respiratory
disease. Do vyou agree or disagree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection

THE WITNESS: I think that's true.
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. premature infants with pressure passive
cerebral circulation are at higher risk for development
of ischemic white matter injury. Do vyou agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. RECKER:

Q. Even in the presence of intact cerebral
vascular autoregulation marks cerebral basal restriction
or systemic hypertension fto the natural impairment of
cerebral blood flow to the cerebral blood vascular zones
resulting in cerebral white matter injury. Do you
agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. BECKER:
Q. I'm now up to Chapter ¢ in Volpe. Let me

ask vou, Doctor, does Volpe say that yvou need asphyxia

in any of his texts in either an hypoxemia or ischemic
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process?

MR. BULLOCH: Objectlon. Mike, come on,
vou're asking him what Volpe has written in his
entire lifetime now.

MR. BECKER: I'm asking if he knows whether
Volpe agrees with him on this proposition that we
need asphyxia?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection. I don't think he
ever said that, but go on.

THE WITNESS: I actually don't understand
the question. It was similar to your cother
question, like, can you have asphyxia without
having hypoxia ischemia. In my mind asphyxia is
either hypoxia or ischemia or a combination of
them. So I just don't really understand the
concept that you‘re asking.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Fair enocugh. Chapter 9 is entitled,
"Hypoxic-ischemic Encephalopathy Clinical Aspects." Do
vou agree with, that hypoxemia leads to brain injury
principally by causing myocardial disturbance and loss
of cerebral vascular autoregulation with ischemia the
major consequence?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.
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1 THE WITNESS: I think, vou know, that
2 sentence was probably read properly and it sounds
3 reasonable.

4 BY MR. BECKER:

5 Q. The major causes or clinical settings for
6 serious hypoxemia include postnatal respiratory

7 ingufficiency, secondary to severe RDS. Do you agree?
8 MR. BULLOCH: Objection

9 THE WITNESS: Severe RDS can cause bad

10 changes in 02 and C02 but Matthew's wasn't

11 severe,

12 BY MR. BECKER:

13 Q. The major causes of serious ischemia is
14 marked hypoxemia of any cause. Do you agree?

15 A. Marked hypoxemia 1s not necessarily good.
16 Q. It should be noted that the majority of
17 infants who experience interrater hypoxic-ischemic

18 insults do not experience overt neonatal neurologic

19 features or subseguent neurological evidence of brain
20 injury. Do you agree?

21 MR. BULLOCH: Objection

22 THE WITNESS: I would have to look at that
23 whole context before agreeing with that. I just
24 don't know what the context is. Are you talking
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about modest, non-damaging, hypoxia. Obviousliy,

yvou know, people lose track of the fact that if

yvou do a venous a puncture on a fetus and

actually measure their oxygen level it's, like,

30, because of thelir fetal blood and that's

hyvpoxia by ocur usual definition, but, vyou know,

we've all been there. All of us have gone
through that low oxygen fetal stage. So I don't
know that it is relevant to this case.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Periventricular white matter injury may
disturk subsequent cerebral cortical development. Do
vou disagree with that?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection. Relevance.
THE WITNESS: No. I think that's probably
true.
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Well, what would vou consider, what part
of the brain would you consider the cerebral cortical
area?

AL Well, all of the surface of the brain is
the cortex. So, vou know, the frontal lobes, the gray
matter of the frontal lobes and the temporal lobes,

parietal, occipital and so forth.
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Q. Hypoxemia may lead to the disturbance of

cerebral vascular autoregulation and, as a conseguence,
a passive pressure circulation. Do you agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. BECKER:

0. Under such circumstances the infant is
vulnerable to superimposed ischemic cerebral injury
with only modest decrease in arterial blood pressure.

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.
MR. BECKER: Do vou agree?
THE WITNESS: I agree but again, you know,

Matthew's blood pressures are really, really

very, very good throughout that whole period.

MR. BECKER: We're going to talk about
Matthew's blood pressure in a moment.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
BY MR. BECKER:

0. Concerning detection -- one second.
Concerning detection and causes of hypoxemia in the
infant with hypoxic-ischemic encephalopathy very
diligent surveillance ig critical. Do you agree?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection

THE WITNESS: Yeah, agalin, I'm not sure of
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the context but it sounds reasonable.

MR. BULLOCH: Mike, just to save me from
making objection every time you read something
from Volpe's can I have a continuing ocbjection to
this line of gquestioning?

MR. BECKER: Sure.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Are yvou familiar with Barkovich who has
written a text, Pediatric Neuroimaging?

A, I know Dr. Barkovich. I have not read the
book.

Q. So do vyou recognize him as one of the
leading authorities in this country on newborn and
pediatric neuroimaging?

A. Yeah.

0. I'm in Chapter 4, Barkovich says that a
number of different patterns of brain injury can be seen
as & result of the hypoxic-ischemic episodes in
neonates, infants and children. Thege patterns can best
be understood 1if interpreted as being a result of three
primary factors:  Severity of hypotension, procuring the
brain at the time of injury and duration of the event.
Do vou agree?

MR, BULLOCH: Mike, before he answers, since
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I asked for a continuing objection as you were

reading through Volpe, I'd like a continuing

objection ag you now read through Barkovich.

MR. BECKER: You can have ocne.

MR. BULLOCH: I would also like to know what
edition and the copyright date is that you're
reading from that particular text, because we all
know --

MR. BECKER: Standard of care 1s not an
igsue here. I'm reading from Chapter 4 of the
most recent edition that came out in 2005.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Premature infants that suffer mild to
moderate hypertension typically sustain injury to the
periventricular white matter with sparing of the
subcortical white matter and cerebral cortex. Do you
agree?

A Yeah, and, again, I think vou are talking
about substantially young preemies there. 2Again, the
term "prematurity" covers a lot of fterritory. Anywhere
from 25 weeks to 36 weeks, technically. So I agree with
the statement but, vou know, with the understand that he
is probably describing the very yvoung preemie there.

Q. I will represent to vyou, professionally,
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Doctor, he doesn't limit his age group for premature

infants in these statements. In contrast, term infants
who suffer similar degrees of hypertension sustain
injury in the watershed portion of the cerebral cortex

and in the underlying subcortical and periventricular

white matter. Do you agree?
A, I think that's generally true.
Q. Classically, this change in injury pattern

has been attributed to a change in location of
intravascular boundary zones. Do you agree with that?
A, Well, I actually don'kt. I mean, that's
part of the, part of the answer but it turns out there'sg
gsome interesting work that actually hasn't even been
published fully vet, that loocks at things bevond just
the simple mechanics and plumbing of the brain and this
has to do with the distribution of what are called
ampter receptors and ampter receptors change very much
through the premature time beyond, you know, beyond term
and birth. 8So, you know, that is sort of a new concept
and it's still being studied a lot in humans and in
animals. So, vou know, he is writing about, sort of,
like, vyou know, they always try to make these things fit
simple mechanical models. Like, this i1s the area of
where the profusion is lowest. It turns out there are
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still other factors involved. So it's not that simple.

That's my only objection to it.

Q. He says that white matter damage of
prematurity is there for an injury associated with
abnormal neurclogical outcome in premature born children
and 1t's particularly common in those with hyaline
membrane disease. Do you agree with that?

A. With severe hyaline membrane disease you
get white matter injury and spastic dysplasia.

Q. Probably due to the maceration of both the
brain and it's vascular system, the pattern of injury
begins tc change between 34 and 36 weeks cause
conceptionally as the regions at the highest risk for
injury extend peripherally to include the subcortical
white matter and cerebral cortex in the intra-arterial
boundary zones. Do you agree?

A, Right, but again thisg is the age group
that is pertinent to Matthew so you have the subcortical
white matter. You go all the way to the surface and
that's the cortex so that's got to be the injury. So
yvou have EEG abnormal, mental status changes, the white
matter right underneath that, the subcortical white
matter; we don't have that finding in him. So I don't
disagree with the statement but, just, again, for
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relevance, this isn't described in his radiology
picture.

O, And, maybe, either I misread it or vyou
didn't understand it. I'm saying it grows and extends,
by the time vou get to 36 weeks and 37 weeks into that
region we Jjust described. That's what that paragraph
savs. Do yvou agree or disagree?

A Can vou just re-read it again. Maybe I
heard it wrong.

Q. .Prebably due to maceration of both the
brain and it's vascular system, the pattern of injury
begins to change bhetween 34 and 36 weeks as the regions
at highest risk for injury extend peripherally to
include subcortical white matter and cerebral cortex.

A, Yeah, but realize what that is saying is
that for a real little preemie it's very ventricular
more or less, and now, between 34 and 36, where Matthew
is, injury at that age extends te the cortex and the
subcortical white matter. You know, if it's ischemic,
well, he doesn't have those changes.

Q. Well, if he has an ischemic pattern of
injury, assume it's true, would that be congistent with
what Barkovich i1g saying?

A. No. Barkovich is saying, you know, it's
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not "just deep now. It's going all the way out between

34 and 36 weeks, that's the pattern. And his white
matter changes are deeper, but they're not subcortical
and there 1s no cortical injury. I mean that's the way,
that's the way I read that -~ un&erstand that paragraph.

Q. Just to move on in the sake of time,
Doctor, he has a table where he is -- shows the pattern
extending to the parasagittal, at 36 weeks, region and
before that nothing documented as to 35 weeks and up to
34 weeks showing periventricular white matter as the
pattern of injury as mild to moderate hypertension.

MR. BULLOCH: Is there a gquestion there,

Mike?

BY MR. BuECEKER:

Q. Yeah. My question is, assuming that's
true, Doctor, do vou agree with that or disagree with
that?

A. You know it's fine. I really need to look
at the table. It's just hard to picture what yvou're
describing.

Q. Now, vou used the phrase, earlier in this
deposition, of PVL and do you mean periventricular

levkomalacia or do vou Jjust mean white matter injury of

prematurity?
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A, Well, I may have used that

non-specifically. I think of them asg being --
basically, the generic term should be white matter
injury because that could be around the ventricles or
subcortical and so forth. PVL by definition has a
location, it's around the ventricle, it's
periventricular. And I'm not enough of a radiologist to
be able to look at white matter lesions and say that's
the location and the look of PVL versus coagulation
necrosis versus infection or inflammation. To me I'm
Just lucky 1f I can see the white matter changes at all.
Q. Doctor, did you bring your current copy of
yvour Vitae with vyou?
A. Yes, I did.
MR. BECXER: Can we mark that as seven
please.
(Whereupon, Exhikit 7 was marked for
identification by the court reporter.)
BY MR. BECKER:
Q. Doctor, are there any articles that you've

written on there that deal with mitochondrial disorders?

A No.
0. Was that a no?
A, No.
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Q. Are there any articles other than the one

article about ischemia to the spinal cord that vyvou wrote
on the topic of HIE?

A, Well, my -- I have an article about the
metabolic effects of geizures in kids with HIE. That is
number 11. The articles about the selzures are mostly
about kids. The articles about the necnatal seizures
are mostly about HIE kidg. I have article 17, we have
continuous intracranial pressure monitoring and serial
electroencephalographic receordings in severely
asphyxiated term neonates. And the one you mentioned
the hypoxic igchemia spinal cord injury. Twenty-four is
about acquired neuropathclogical findings in kids with a
heart defect, and those are ischemically, in term
babies. So it's relevant. It's not exactly that. I
think that's pretty much it.

0. Doctor, can we agree that there is no
indication of what this child's blood pressure was or
heart rate was between 5:00 and 6:00 p.m. on the 25th
and between 6:00 and 8:00 p.m. on the 25th?

A, I1'd have to loock at the records to say
that,

Q. This is around the time when there was

suspected pneumcthorses, bilateral pneumothorses,
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1 putting in chest tubes?

2 MR. BULLOCH: Objection
3 THE WITNESS: There was a right-sided
4 pneumothorax and the right-gsided chest tube is
5 put in and I understand there is a dispute about
6 the interpretation of the chest X-ray. There was
7 a left-sided pneumothorax also or pneumoinstinum
8 and I'm not going to have an opinion on that but
9 that he did later get a left-sided chest tube.
10 So this is around those times, ves.

11 BY MR. BECKER:

12 Q. Doctor, I want you to assume it's true

13 that between 5:00 and 6:00 p.m. there is no heart rate
14 or blood pressure or pulse ox recorded -- let me, there
15 ig no bhlood pressure, heart rate recorded and between
16 6:00 and 8:00 p.m. there is no bloocd pressure and heart
17 rate recorded. Would that be what vou have referred to
18 in other depositions as, kind of, a black hole of data

19 as to what was going on with the child during this

20 critical period of time?

21 MR. BULLOCH: Objection

272 THE WITNESS: Well, there is no numbers
23 ' written down. There is a bklack hole of, vyou

24 know, recorded data but, yvou know, these babies
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are under visual observation and they don't look
good, they don't respond to them. I mean alarms
can go off. If there was a sudden bradycardia or
sudden hypoxia the kids are on machines to alarm

if that happens.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. I think we have agreed that gradually the

selizure will fizzle out after an acute injury, correct?

after

A. I'm sorry, what did we agree on?
Q. That gradually a seizure will fizzle out
the acute injury?

MR. BULLOCH: Objection. I don't recall any
discussion about that but go ahead, Doctor.

THE WITNESS: I mean when kids have selzures
acutely from a stroke or hemorrhage or HIE almost
always they will, vyou know, over hours or days
or, you know, some finite pericd of time, they

will stop the acute seizures.

BY MR. BECKER:

0. Was this child a normal head size at birth

for a 34, 35-weeker?

A, Actually recall that it was 25th

percentile or so.

MR. BULLOCH: Feel free to look at the
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records, Doctor.

THE WITNESS: My report recorded it to be
around the 25th percentile for age.
BY MR. BECKER:
Q. And did the mom have a complaint of

decreased feel of movement?

A. Not that I recall.

Q. And was there evidence of polymyodous?
A. Not that I recall.

Q. And the newborn exam when the child

arrived at Fairview was normal?

A. As far as I remember, ves.

Q. So we have a normal looking brain and
child at the time this child arrived at Fairview?

A. You mean normal looking exam?

0. Yes.
A, When vou said brain -- yes, as far as I

recognized, that the child, you know, had the
respiratory problems, which is why he was transferred,
but had a normal head circumference and had normal
muscle tone, activity and, I guess, alertness at that
point.

Q. About day 6 of life I believe that the

first note is a change in tone and change in activity.
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Do you recall that?

MR. BULLOCH: What date, Mike?

MR. BECKER: I believe it's day 6 of life
when they first started charting decreased tone
and the decreased activity.

THE WITNESS: I, actually let me just get my
notes. So I have on day 10 -- no, I'm sorry, on
day 11 low tone and this is from my notes. So
actually I think on day 8 there was concerns
about the low sodium; on day 11 there was low
tone. The next day is when they found the
prneumonia was higher, 67.

BRY MR. BECKER:

Q. And can increased elevated pneumonia be a
reflection of encephalopathy?

A. The other way arocund, an elevated
pneumonia can cause an encephalopathy. If you have a
bad liver and vyou drink too much or whatever those
people get pretty stuporous and that's, at least in
part, from the elevated pneumonia that their liver is
not clearing.

Q. Anywavs, Doctor, around roughly day 6 or
day 7 the child started to demonstrate some abnormal
neuro signs which persisted throughout that neonatal
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1 care. Do you agree or disagree? :
2 MR. BULLOCH: Objection, Mike, you just said
3 it was day 11. Now vou're trying to push it back
4 to, he saild it was day 6. He never agreed it was
5 day 6. He said it was day 11.

6 BY MR. BECKER:

7 Q. Let's say day 11 then, Doctor.

8 A. Well, that's what I have in my notes, is
9 that the activity and tone was around day 1il.

10 Q. Okay. That was noted at day 11 and did

11 that persist?

12 : A. Yes, it did.

13 0. And does the record reflect that that was
14 the basis for low tone and decreased activity, the basis
15 for the concern by Doctor Lilan of a neuro injury and

i6 the reason he ordered an MRI?

17 A. That was my understanding. I think he got
18 a neuro consult in there, too.

19 Q. Doctor, I'm going back to this

20 mitochondrial disorder. Is there a specific test that
21 can be done to rule this in or rule this out, specific

22 blood work?

23 A. Well, there are specific tests, plural,

24 but this is a very, very complex metabolic disturbance
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so you might imagine there is a lot of chemicals that go

into the normal working of a mitochondria. So there
could be a genetic thing, the oxidative enzymes,
transport enzymes. So the work-up, usually, is to have
a neuro metabolic specialist to see the child to look
for very specific things.

Q. And was that ever done with Matthew?

A. No. Just the screening test, which is the
lactic acid is the screening test for them and they were
pogitive.

Q. Have you ever suggested to defense counsel
that this child should have metabolic testing?

A I did yesterday and I am today, tco.

Q. So it's your opinion, Doctor, that this
child's condition is not related to any type of
infection or cytokine injury?

A. I don't think -- see, I don't think that
any of that explains Matthew right now. At least my
understanding of cytokine injury, which is, again, it's
a picture of spasticity and as the white matter is being
injured so that's the long track sign. So you have
spastic dysplasia or spastic quadriparesis. Again, when
vou look at the videotapes I think the most visible part

of his disorder is the choroid cytosis and then we have
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the deafness and his neuro bhehavioral things and those

are pretty classic for mitochondrial disease. Whether
or not this is progressive, my understanding from the
recent stuff, we talked about before with Dr. Wilhem, is
that 1t sounds like there is a bilg difference. Even if
it's static, as you'll see in the description cof the
mitochondrial disorders, that it's a very broad spectrum
of condition and that can include static lesions.

Q. Your speciality is within pediatric
neurology, EEG, electroencephalograms, correct?

A. No. I mean I'm a general child
neurologiét.and I have conditional training in EEG and
epilepsy. I run the epillepsy clinic. I certainly have
kids with mitochondrial disorders because some of them
have epillepsy, but when I attend the, you know, the
inpatient service it's whatever comes in. It could be a
stroke, a hemorrhage or, yvou know, whatever,
mitochondrial disorder. So I have, you know, 25 years
of experience here at CHOP. So I've seen a lot of
stuff.

Q. As to medical/legal vyou do about 70
percent defense, 30 percent plaintiff?

A. Something like that.

Q. You failed vyvour beoards in the EEG the

R Y Y
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first time vou tocok them?
A. Yes.
Q. Is it your opinion, Doctor, that the

lesions that both Dr. Nelson and Pregsman see on the MRI
early on are not causing any dysfunction, either
motor-wise or cognitively, in this child?

A, So, I mean that's a really fair guestion.
T can't say that they're causing no issue whatsocever.
I guess what I'm saying is that they certainly do not
describe the predominant form of history of cerebral
palsy or the deafness or the lactic acid or the
behavioral stuff. So, usually, when you see white
matter lesions causing spasticity there's a whole lot
more there. The cyst and all that kind of stuff. Sco
I'm not really sure if this 1s contributing or not.

There is a possibility that there is but I don't really

think so.

Q. Did they ever measure this child's serum
prolactin?

A, Prolactin, I don't remember.

Q. Tf it was elevated what would that be an

indication of?
A. Well, prolactin can go up with hormonal

problems, pituitary problems, in a comatoge state it can

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO




Robert Ryan Ciancy, M.D.

10

i1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

i9

20

21

22

23

24

Page 67 f

increase after seizures. So there is a pretty broad
iist of things. Some drugs can increase prolactin, too.
Q. Doctor, I just want to recap here. Your

opinions as to why vou can rule out the complications of
RDS as the etiology of Matthew's current condition, vou

feel there should still be, if it was hypoxemia combined
with loss of autoregulation, you feel there should still
be evidence of multi-organ injury, correct?

AL Yes.

o. Do you feel that -- well, we now know that
two experts both see abnormalities in early MRIs so the
basis of a negative MRI that you reference in vyour
report 1 suspect is being withdrawn?

MR. BULLOCH: (bjection because -- well,
I'11 just object.

THE WITNESS: Right. I mean, I was basing
that on the medical records that, vyou know, the
hospital's reading of that and I don't think
they're normal. So I can't -- I have to withdraw
that.

BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Okay. And the fact that there was no
seizures or documented seizures, clinically, the fact
that seizures are very difficult to pick up in a newborn

TR o R s R
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and only occur, that can be appreciated clinically 20

percent of the time, that's not a strong basis for you
to say there wasn't an insult in thisg child, correct?

A. Well, vou know, vyou don't have to have a
seilizure to be asphyxiated. There are babies that are
asphyxiated that, even if you didn't continue to use EEG
monitoring, don't have seizures. You know, the
fundamental thing, even the multisystem, that's true, I
believe to be arcund 80 percent of cases of birth
asphyxia will have multisystem but it's not a hundred.

I can live without the seizures but I can't live without
the encephalopathy. I mean 1f you damage the brain,
right then and there, by pneumothorax and hypoxia and
all that, so severally that for the rest of this kid's
life i1s going to have the troubles that Matthew has, how
do yvou do that without having any neurological signs?
Not just seilzures but, vou know, changes --

Q. Well, when vou say --

MR. BULLCOCH: Walt a minute, Mike, let him
finish.

THE WITNESS: So, I mean, the cardinal signs
of then and there, right then and there, during
the pneumocthorax, the mental status, the

activity, the tone, reactiong to the nurses and
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so forth. So that's my main objection to

connecting the pneumothorses to his long-term

problem.
BY MR. BECKER:

0. Now, then and there, during that day, was
he medicated with Valium and morphine?

A. Yes. He was given morphine for his
irritabkility and I just presume it had to do with the
pneumothorax. I guess it could hurt. So that -- but,
again, we're talking about, really, encephalopathy. A
35-week baby there i1s a difference between being given a
pain medication and being encephalcopathic. I can't
imagine they couldn't tell the difference or would miss
an encephalopathy.

Q. Let's first see 1f we can agree that
medication can mask encephalopathy, potentially?

A. Well, if anything it would mimic
encephalopathy. If I gave you enough morphine, you
would be unconscicus and nct move cor whatever. It is
not going to mask it. It would actually raise the

concexrn, why isn't this person active in moving around

and responsive. So it's really opposite, I would say.
Q. Well, can the irritability be a sign of
encephalopathy?
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A, In some clrcumstances, it can. For

examplie, 1in meningitis the babies are irritable as a
non-specific cerebral sign because, I don't know, they
have a headache or the meningitis is irritating the
meninges but I don't think of, I don't think of
irritability as being part of, like, classgic hypoxic
ischemia and encephalopathy.

Q. When vou gay, where is the encephalopathy,
are you saying that thig child, if there was a hit on
this child due to the hypoxemia and the vulnerability to
loss of autcregulation, that this child should have
demonstrated what Volpe describes as the neonatal

neurological syndrome?

Al Yes. Definitely.

Q. That's what you're talking about?

A, Yes, ves and by neonatal neurclogical
syndrome -- again, vou know, if thig is a tiny, tiny

preemie I do not expect them to have altered mental
status, seizures or whatever. They can have plenty of
brain damage from hvpoxia cr ischemlia when they are very
preemie. But for this child who is near term, 35 weeks
and, certainly, I know this is in the ACOG thing when
they define, you know, 35, it's 34 to term. You know,

i1f you have brain damage from an event right now, then
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vou must show some acute neurclogical gighs right now.

O, Which ACOG are you referring to?

A, The green thing, the, you know, that lays
out the criteria, but I only refer to that because they,
literally, state, for the neurologic signs, they
recognize, if it's a very young baby, you may not see
neurological signs in activity, selzures. But 34 weeks
to term or post term is where that's one of the cardinal
features for birth asphyxia. Again, thig is not birth
asphyxia but it's still a type of asphyxia. You're
saying, vou know, your hypothesis is impaired
autoregulation, hypertension, hypoxic, well, that's a
tvpe of an asphyxial injury. So, how do you, how do you
injure somebody, yvou know, day after birth when, 1f it
was a day before, then you would really expect to see
those prominent clinical signs.

0. Well, let's assume that this happened,
that, 1f vou follow the Plaintiff's hypothesis here,
that there was insult and, maybe, multiple insults of
the combkination of loss of autoregulation with
hypoxemia. What specific clinical signs would you
expect to see as evidence of the brain injury or the
encephalopathy. What specific neurc signs in a newborn

would vou expect to see?
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A~ “Again, so if it's significant enough to
cause brain damage vou would expect, you know, a
striking degree of low tone, hypertone; a striking
degree of inactivity, unresponsiveness, up to coma. It
turns out that over half of the kids that are birth
asphyxiated do have selzures, but not all of them, so
you might have them yvou might not. Eighty percent of
the kids will have because, again, thelir whole body has
been exposed to this ischemia, yvou would expect to see
80 percent of the time, other organs involved, you know,
the usual thing, the kidneys, the gut, the liver, the
bone marrow.

Q. Doctor, I'm going to have to apclogize for
about the last two minutes I'm having problems with my
sound and I have been playing with this and it's not
working. So if you could just either re-state that last
answer because I didn't hear it. I heard it in
segments.

MR. BULLOCH: Do vyou want the court reporter
to read back the answer.

MR. BECKER: Either way.

{(Whereupon, the last answer was read back by
the court reporter.)

BY MR. BECKER:

Page 72 ;
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Q.- wWhat vou would expect to see, a noticeable
change in activity, a change in tone, and possibly
multisystem organ injuries?

A. Those, yeah those are included.

0. Now, when a child is on a mechanical
ventilation does he receive any drugs to keep him calm?
A. I don‘t think it's automatic and some
babies seem to tolerate it more than others. It's not

uncommon for nurses to give drugs like Valium just to
reduce the "anxiety" of the experience but I don't think
it's a knee jerk reflex thing.

Q. There is a order, I think, aroundlnoon of
the 25th, for staff, a stat administration, I believe,
of Valium, not morphine, I think it was Valium. Do you
have any understanding as to what led up to that?

A. I don't. I don't recall that.

Q. Doctor, I think I understand where vou're
coming from. I want to chat with yvou at the very end,
I'm just about done. I might have 15 minutes or so or
more. I want to talk about this articie that vou
co-authored with many other physiclians at CHOP. And
it's entitled, "PVL 1is Common Following Neonatal Cardiac
Surgery.® Do you recall the article?

A, Yes.
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1 Q. In fact it was published in March of 2004~

2 and before I get into this a little bit would you agree
3 with, at least, with Barkovich when he finally concluded

4 that this use of the word PVL has been too liberal and

5 it is has a very specific meaning and one should be more
6 talking about premature white matter injury to avoid

7 confusion. Would yvou agree with that?

8 A, Well, I prchably agree that there is a lot
9 of different terms that are thrown arcund. Some are

10 better than others. But, vou know, we're all talking
11 = about acute legions in the white matter, whether they
12 are premature babies or not. But I do understand he's
i3 got this opinion, but --

14 Q. In the article vou say you conclude that
15 hypoxemia and hypotension in the early post operative

16 period, particularly diastolic hypotension, may be

17 important risk factors for PVL, correct?

18 A. Yes.

19 0. Now, in these children was there evidence
20 of multisystem organ injury?

21 A. I don't, I mean, ves, they're all cardiac
22 kids. So the picture ~- please remember this, the

23 context here, these kids just had cardiac surgery and --
24 Q. Right but what vou were discovering --

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEG



Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

Page 75

1 ' MR. BULLOCH: Mike, let him answer his

2 question, please.

3 THE WITNESS: Just so you understand,

4 though, these kids all do go through a ca:diac

5 failure in the post-op period. We know that is

6 goling to happen and, you know, it's called the

7 sag. So around 12 hours after surgery they get

8 hypertensive and things like that. So it is in

9 this context, and I'm not saving birth asphvxia.
10 You just saild cardiac surgery. So they do have
11 falling blood pressures. That's why we lock at
12 oxygenation of the blood and blood pressures.

13 Their lungs will often get stiffer. We ocften

14 confuse that with their cardiac output. Now, in
15 terms of correlating it with PVL the lowest

16 oxygen reading and the lowest blood pressures

17 were risk factors for those things being

18 developed in the post-op period.

19 BY MR. BECEKER:
20 Q. 2t the end of the article there is a
21 communication between a doctor asking guestions and
22 someone from your group, in this case a Dr. Gaynor,
23 responding and the doctor asked the guestion -- he makes
24 a statement, the doctor not part of the study, savs, in
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patients with postoperative hypoxemia in PAC2 of lesgs

than 40 or post operative hypotension, both of which
were great points in yvour study, was there a correlation
when the PVL occurred, and Dr. Gaynor goes on te answer
in the affirmative. My question 1s I'm assuming PAO2
here means TA02 and that is the gas oxygenation of less
than 40, correct?

A. Yes. That's TACZ2.

0. Now, and a diastolic blood pressure lesg
than 35, correct, for these kids?

A Yeah, I don't remember the number but we
gave it as a cut point.

Q. And wag there evidence O0f THO2 of less
than 40 in this child at Fairview General Hospital that
18 below your break point?

L. There wasg a single measurement below that.

MR. BULLOCH: Objection.
BY MR. BECKER:

Q. Do you know whether or not there is a
correlation or -- strike that. Can you correlate,
Doctor, oxygen saturation cof 60 to 70 as to how that
would equate into a PAO2A? Are you familiar with any
formula basgsed in your experience?

A. See I can't, that's not part of my
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expertise so I can't ahswer that.

Q. Dr. Gaynor writes that we haven't looked
for PVL in neonates without cardiac disease but patient
population in which PVL was described igs in the neonatal
intensive care unit, in preterm infants, and it has been
associated with a variety of factors with hypoxemia,

with respiratory distress syndrome in these infants and

with hyvpotension. Do you agree?
A. Right. Again, for preterm babies --
realize again Dr. Gaynor is a cardiac surgeon. He's

presenting to the Society of Cardiac Surgery and that

these are kids who have just had cardiac surgery, soO,

like, the hypoxic -- you have to keep in mind, again,

these kids do have multisystem malfunction. They have
bad profusion because they have -just had major cardiac
surgery and, of course, Matthew didn't have any blood
pressure issues. He had the one reading below 40.

Q. Right, but what Dr. Gaynor is -- I guess I
would have to show you the article to be fair with you,
Doctor, but he 1s saving we haven't looked for PVL in
neconates without cardiac disease but the patient
population in which PVL is described he is referring to
the literature, clearly, in a neonatal intensive care

unit in the preterm infants that have been assocociated
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with hypoxemia and with respiratory distress syndrome in
infants that's what he's saying.

MR. BULLOCH: Objection. You're assuming
what Dr. Gayﬁor is referring to in his question
at some point in time, but go ahead, Doctor.

THE WITNESS: VYes. When we discugsed this
issue it's actually very important, I think,
because from a population point of view there is
a lot more preemies with PVL and handicapped,
like, real preemies, like, 30-weekers, and here
we have term kidg that go into cardiac surgery
and they have this PVL that shows up. It's much
smaller. We don't really know how significant it
is, by the way. That gives us a chance to,
maybe, understand what's behind the PVL and the
preemie. So, yvou know, I think he's referring to
the literature there. I agree with that. He's
talking about most of what we know about PVLs and
little preemies in the NICU and all that sort of
stuff but this, sort of, extends our
understanding of the biology of PVL.

BY MR. BECKER:
Q. Clearly Matt was a preemie, correct?

AL He was, he was near term, 35 weeks. He 1s
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right on the border. So, ves, he's a preemie but, vyou

know, Just a pinch.

0. He had moderate respiratory distress
syndrome and he was mechanically ventilated, correct?

A. Yes, sir, that's correct.

Q. He had, at least by reading the chart, two
bouts with pneumothorsis and there was evidence of
hypoxemia in his chart about this period of time,
correct?

A. Yes. He had some low readings, but I
don't consgsider them to be terribly low.

0. Well, how low does 1t have to be and you
uge this phrase in your report of "brain damaging
hypoxemia.” How low does it have to be and what's your
authority for it?

A. So for a near term child I guess the
critical value would be around 20 and the authority for
that statement has to do with my work and experience
with kids that do have congenital heart disease, because
there are plenty of babieg floating around that have a
big hole in their heart and the blue blood mixes with
the red blcood and they have chronic hypoxia and they
have it until they undergo their cardiac surgeries days

or weeks later. Now, there are some critical forms of
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congenital heart disease where you'll literally have the

mother give birth at our pediatric hospitals so the baby
can be taken directly from her room into the cardiac
operating theater, if we know that their cardiac lesion
is one that will produce this profound, severe, low
value.

So 20 is sort of the cut-off point for
crisis, but again vou're talking about someone with, vou
know, not just hypoxia but profusion. And Matthew's
blood pressures were good. His color was consistently
described as pink, his saturation were generally good.
They're not perfect but they‘re good. We have this one
point in time where vou've got one PAJ2 value that falls
low and that's lower than vou want 1t to be. I know
that, and he did have a pneumothorax, but if that
triggered his brain damage then where is the clinical
evidence with the encephalopathy. That's really the way
I analyze this case.

Q. Would vou defer to a neuroradiclogist on
the issue of whether one can have micrestructural injury
to the deep brain, the thalami, the basal ganglia and
not have it appear on the MRI?

A. No, I wouldn't really, because I don'ﬁ

think they're in position to judge that. I'm the doctor
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that says, look, I just did an examination. This kid
has severe extrapyramidal features. Whether cor not they
see it. Like I said, in metabolic disease the basal
ganglia don't work properly, they're dysfunctional, but
they may appear fine. If he's going to give me some
song and dance about invisible damage, I'm not going to
buy that. I will accept their reading if they say it
looks structurally normal but the interpretation that
really is a secret, hidden, cryptic kind of injury, I
think I'm the best judge of that.

0. Well, 1f, in vyour experience, 1f seeing
edema in the deep brain of MRIs taken, one day or two
days of life and if, day of life 8, 10 or 15 they no
longer see any evidence of damage on the films, yet the
child has evidence of thalamic injury, 1g it wrong for
them to conclude that the injury is there but we know
that it is just not showing up?

MR. BULLOCH: Well, Mike, vou Jjust said that

‘they're seeing an image of the thalamus, and

yvou're talking about the neuroradiclogist, and

then, in the same guestion, vou're saying they're
not seelng any changes. I'm confused.

THE WITNESS: I understand his question.

BY MR. BECKER:

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEO




Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

10

i1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

. No. I'm saying in my hypothetical,
Doctor, where they, I've had this, I'm not making this
up, in multiple caseg. I can think of two where there
have been, early day 1 or day 2 of life, clear evidence
of edema deep in the brain, subsequent MRI on day 10 or
day 20 showing it normal and yet, today, the child is
showing mixed CP?

A. Right and here's -- and I think mavhbhe
we 're not really disagreeing but I've also seen cases
where, like right after birth, a day or two, you see
changes. They go through a phase, later, of
normalization and I don't know what that time period 1is,
I don't remember it but then when vou do follow-up scans
when they are a year or two vears old you do see, then,
like, the permanent scaring and atrophy and signal
changes of the basal ganglia. There could be a phase,
like, maybe, I don't know, for argument sake, ten davs,
two weeks after birth where it could be the edema is
gone but then when vou have follow-up studiesg you do
expact to see the changes. So we don't have changes on
our first scan and I forget how old the child was then.
His MRI scan was done on 9/8, so I guess he was 15 davs

old, day of life 15, but we have got several scans after

that and they should have shown the basal ganglia
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changes.

Q. Doctor, in your report when you say, 1've
never seen the combination arise in practice, that is, a
mixed CP as a result of VL, I think I know what you
mean but better explain it to me.

k. Right. The combination there, is a
combination carditis, i1s the classic combination of
extracranial CP and deafness. You know, this kid's
billow rate was never that high i1t was 13, 13.6
something like that, but I've never seen arise from FVL
alone a picture of extrapyramidal and pyramidal CP. I
expect those kids to have spastic forms and agailn when
vou look at the videctapes the choroid acidosis is not
subtle it's actually extremely florid. So this is a
major contribution to his disabilities from the choroid
acidosis and I have not sgeen that on PVL.

Q. Well, where do you see the chordal, simply
in his head or do you see it in his arms as well?

A. Yeah. ITt's actually, there is a nice
scene, I think it was the first time video, where mom's
got beoth of the kiés in their little high chairs and the
camera 1s facing them and the little girl is eating and
as Matthew tries to eat, vou know, his head rotates. He

doesn't have the control. His hands rise and he is
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tryving to eat. A1l of these extra overflow movements

are part of the chorocidal acidosis. And then in the day
in the life movie I think he is working with one of the
occupational therapist and he's in this, they have him
suspended from a sling and he's, like, suppcsed to be
getting these forms and putting them in the molids and
again hig hands are riging and so forth. It's his head
trunk and arms. I don't really see it in his legs. His

legs doesn't seem to be as involved.

Q. How do vou pronounce that again-?
A. Extrapyramidal.
o. Extrapyramidal it's got to be without

purpose, ¢orreet?

Al Correct.

0. And you're assuming that his movements
while he was eating were without purpose?

A, I mean the movements, the extra
movements. He was trying to eat and the movements
didn't serve the purpose of eating. They would intrude
or interfere with the desire to act. So that's why they

are called involuntary, they're not under his voluntary

control. They arise within.
Q. Did you ask to examine this child?
A No, I didn't. I did ask for an updated
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video. I mean I asked if there was an updated video

0. So 1f, in fact, his motor problems are
static, you would still maintain vour position that this
kid's problem is from an undiagnosed metabolic disease
of scome type?

A. Yeah, again the concept of the
mitochondrial disorder as being static is well
documented but, again, when you lock at the whole
picture of the extrapyramidal CP, the deafness, the
lactic acidosis, the neuro behavioral things, that's
clearly within the diagnostic category of
mitochondrial. If it's progressive even deeper into
that territory but I am certainly uncomfortable with

that as a working diagnosis at this point.

Q. You're presuming that his lactic acidosis
persists?
A. Well, first of all, and I know vou will

look at this paper, they don't have to have any lactic
aclidosis. That can be an intermittent thing, but when I
read Dr. Bachman's deposition, remember, the first time
they did the lactic acid, they also dia a pneumonia
level. Pneumonia ig a very fussy thing, too. So 1f you
have a tourniguet or whatever you can geif spurious

pneumonia readings. His pneumonia was very normal

ZANARAS REPORTING & VIDEOC




Robert Ryan Clancy, M.D.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

i9

20

21

22

23

24

Page 86
thing. So that told me in the game blood draw he has a

normal pneumonia level and that's a sensitive test and
he‘s gect a clearliy high lactic. And then Dr. Bachman'sg
deposition he said, well, I wanted to be sure about this
so he wrote in the chart he did it in the morning. He
wasn't fussy. They didn't use a tourniguet to repeat it
and I don't remember the exact number. It was still
clearly high. I think the first wvalue was 21 and the
second value was 17, but those are way elevated; 16 and
21 were the numbers. So I thought they did a good Job
of, you know, being -- recognizing where the pitfalls
were in the technical agspect of drawing a lactic acid.
So again that shouldn't be there. Now, whether another
measurement would prove it, no. You need to go to the
next level now, which would be more invasive things,
genetic testing and really something that reguires true
expertise in this.

Q. Well, 1s 1t your experience with children
with mitochondrial disorders that they generally
manifest this condition in the very early newborn
period?

A. Abgolutely. Some -- I mean, again, when
you see the paper they talk about the experiences and

say what was the range of presentation, and some are
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newborn and I don't even know that Matthew is

manifesting his metabolic disease as a newborn. I think
it's really later when they appreciate that he's got the
arcing and all the rest of that. That, to me, is when
it really manifests. To me the newborn period, again,
when he had the pneumothorax he didn't really show
anything specific neurologically and then later when he
was, like, 11 days old and had the hypertonia and all
that. They were worried about infection,  the pneumonia,
the low sodium. They had a neurologist come in and he,
sort of, kind of, got a little better. He was certainly
better when he was discharged from the hospital than he
was at the presentation. So I don't really know when
the metabelic mitochondrial disorder really declared
itself, but at this point he's got all the hallmarks of
a mitochondrial disorder.

0. So, Doctor, you would urge his treating
neurologist to consider that diagnosis?

A. Absolutely.

Q. And you cannot, you don't have an opinion
ag to the brain injury that is shown in the early MRI,
how that's impacting him or can you sparse that out?

A. Yeah, I mean the white matter injury is

there. Again, I don't know 1f that's a, you know,
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again, the radiologists disagree. Pressman said it was, 5

like, a profusion issue, like a low blood pressure
issue. Nelson said it was, like, coagulation as opposed
to something vou get with cytokine injury. I'm not
golng to offer an opinion on that. Although I can see
it, it's not terribly impressive in terms of there was
no cyst and so forth, and at least from my reading of
the following reports there ig not a great deal of, vyou
know, there is little ditzels in there now. It's hard
for me to correlate that with, like, CP for example.

You know what we didn't talk about, you
brought up this paper that we did with the PVL and so
forth. Those kids don't have CP, by the way. I mean
they may, a lot of the cardiac kids have some
developmental issues, attention gpan lssues, things like
that, but it's really rare for them to have cerebral
palsy. So you can have little white matter pouches and
they're not -~ we don't know the full significance of
that. That's why I can't say from Matthew either.

0. wWell, you only looked at one film and it
was the early film. VYou didn't see how this injury
evolved?

A. No, I understand that. What I'm saying

ig, when I read the reports they're not talking about
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cystg in the white matter, things like that. .

Q. You're referring to the original treating
doctor's reports, not depositions?

A. Correct, and I'm sure you know this, but
the correlation with white matter injury in preemies it
depends on, it's not just a touch of PVL. It's like, it
is supposed to be fairly extensive and there's much
higher correlation of CP 1f there's cysts in the white
matter. If there is cysts it means the tracts have died
and they have been filled with water. So we're using
PVL as a general blanket term but what correlates most
of the CP ig the multi-cystic PVL and the kids that
don’'t have that, I'm not saying they are a hundred
percent normal, but it's less correlated with CP and to
my knowledge Matthew never had cystic white matter
lesions.

0. Well, isn't it true, Doctor, that classic
PVL talks, connotes cysts around the ventricle. Not
within the white -- not deep in the white matter. They

talk about cysts, classic PVL and cysts around the

ventricles?
A. But it's cysgts of the white matter that
surrounded the wventricle. That's PVL around the

ventricle and if vou get lots and lots of it they
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actually turn cystic but it's still cystic white matter
changes.
MR. BECEKER: That's all I have.
{(Whereupon, Exhibit 8, Exhibit 9, Exhibit
10, EBExhibit 11, Exhibit 12, Exhibit 13, Exhibit
14 and Exhibit 15 were marked for identification
by the court repocrter.)
(Whereupon, the deposition concluded

11:22 a.m.)
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CERTIFITCATION

I, Micheline Brown, a Court Reporter and
Commissioner of Deeds for the Commonwealth Of
Pennsylvania, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a
true and accurate transcript of my original stenographic

notes taken at the time and place herein before set

forth.
Micheline Brown
Court Reporter
Commissioner of Deeds
DATED:

(The foregoing certification of this
transcript does not apply to any reproduction of the
same by any means, unless under the direct control
and/or supervision of the certifying shorthand

reporter.)
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Page 92

INSTRUCTIONS TO WITNESS

Read your deposition over carefully. It is
vour right to read your deposition and make changes in
form or substance. You should assign a2 reason in the
appropriate column on the ERRATA SHEET for any change
made.

After making any change in form oxr
gubstance, and which have been noted on the following
ERRATA SHEET, along with the reason for change, sign
your name on the ERRATA SHEET and date 1t.

Then sign your deposition at the end of vyour
testimony in the space provided. You are signing it
gubject to the changes yvou have made in the ERRATA
SHEET, which will be attached to the deposition before
filing. You must sign in the space provided. The
witness need not be a Notary Public. Any competent
adult may witnesg yvour signature.

Return the original ERRATA SHEET to John T.
Bulloch, Esquire, 1422 Euclid Avenue, Sulte 630,
Cleveland, Ohic 44115. Court rules regquire filing

within 30 dayvs afiter you receive the deposition.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

OF
ROBERT RYAN CLANCY, MD.

I hereby acknowledge that I have read the
foregoing deposition dated August 25, 2006, and that the
same is a true and correct transcription of the answers
given by me to the qguestions propounded, except for the

changes, 1f any, noted on the attached EREATA SHEET.

SIGNATURE

ROBERT RYAN CLANCY, M.D.

WITNESSED BY: DATE:

ADDRESS:
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